
Evan Kort <ekort@ci.carmel.ca.us>

Concerns regarding JB Pastor Building, DR 23-140
Ian Martin Tue, Jul 2, 2024 at 9:17 AM
To: mlepage@ci.carmel.ca.us, eallen@ci.carmel.ca.us, skarapetkov@ci.carmel.ca.us, rdelves@ci.carmel.ca.us,
slocke@ci.carmel.ca.us
Cc: Chip Rerig <crerig@ci.carmel.ca.us>, Brandon Swanson <bswanson@ci.carmel.ca.us>, Evan Kort <ekort@ci.carmel.ca.us>,
"Marnie R. Waffle" <mwaffle@ci.carmel.ca.us>, Katherine Wallace <kwallace@ci.carmel.ca.us>, planning@ci.carmel.ca.us,
building@ci.carmel.ca.us

Dear Chairman LePage and Members of the Carmel-by-the-Sea Planning Commission,

I’m writing to you to express two concerns about the proposed design for the JB Pastor Building (DR 23-
140). 

First concern: It is too large to be built by law. 

On the proposed plans, the structure labeled “building 1” and “building 3” is obviously not two separate 
buildings, but one single continuous building. The total floor area of it is 12,185 square feet, which 
greatly exceeds the legally allowed square footage for any one single structure, as per Carmel-by-the-
Sea’s municipal code:

17.14.140 Floor Area Ratio
C. Maximum Floor Area. No single structure shall contain more than 10,000 square feet of floor area. 

This law was pointed out to the developer before when the planning commission considered an earlier 
iteration of the developer’s Ulrika Plaza (DR 20-350) in 2022. Like now, the developer’s plans for that 
project depicted a single proposed building that far exceeded the legal maximum square footage saying 
that it was multiple buildings when plainly it was one large one. The developer then redesigned so that 
none of the buildings on that site was larger than 10,000 square feet. As the October 12, 2022 staff 
report for the redesign of Ulrika Plaza states:

“At the previous hearing [March 9, 2022], there was also discussion regarding the size of the individual 
buildings and whether they exceeded the allowable square footage for a single building. In accordance 
with CMC 17.14.140.C, No single structure shall contain more than 10,000 square feet of floor area. 
Interaccessibility between adjacent structures on one or more building sites by any means that allows 
passage between structures without first exiting to an open space area shall not be allowed if the 
resulting floor area contained within the combined structures would exceed 10,000 square feet of area. 
It was concluded the buildings did in fact exceed the allowable square footage and should 
reduce in square footage and/or redesigned to be separated.” (Emphasis added.)

Like that earlier iteration of the Ulrika Plaza design, a major component of the proposed design for the 
JB Pastor Building greatly exceeds the legally allowed size, and therefore needs to be revised. 

Second concern: Adding additional Spanish colonial revival buildings to the downtown 
undermines our community character. 



The Spanish colonial revival style of architecture has become a cliche all over California, appearing in 
the form of shopping centers, hotels, and all sorts of other commercial buildings. We already have plenty 
of examples of it in Carmel. More should be strenuously avoided here lest our village begin to feel like 
“anywhere USA.” What’s more, having a blend of different architectural styles is important to our 
community character. Adding even more Spanish colonial revival buildings--especially large ones--
threatens that balance. 

Our best examples of the Spanish colonial revival buildings were built here in the 1920s when a 
fascination with California’s Spanish colonial history was peaking. So-called “Serra Pageants” were 
popular then, and Carmel residents were captivated by the fact that California was once part of the 
Spanish empire. That was then. Today, we know more about the legacy of Spanish colonization and 
what it meant to the people and the cultures that were here for millennia before the Spanish arrived to 
“save” them. What was intended as salvation actually resulted in the exact the opposite. Knowing what 
we know today, we should not romanticize that era further by creating more buildings with architecture 
inspired by it.

Something else to consider: Carmel-by-the-Sea’s history is largely reflected in its buildings, but every 
time another historical reproduction is added, that history is diluted. Buildings should reflect the era that 
they were built in. (For example, the Spanish colonial revival of the 1920s capture a time when our 
village and California in general was enthralled with California’s Spanish colonial history.) Historical 
styles should therefore be avoided. As the commercial design guidelines state: “New buildings should 
not imitate styles of the past, but strive to achieve compatibility with the old.” I urge the planning 
commission to protect the integrity of our historical architectural record and community character and 
reject the Spanish colonial revival style as well as other historical reproductions.   

“Consciously or unconsciously we admire the things that are true to themselves and we do not want 
[mission] San Gabriel for a church, or a home, or a hotel--but in itself, as the expression of its own time 
and place and life, it is beautiful.” --Internationally celebrated architect Charles Sumner Greene, writing
in Pasadena in 1905. Greene would later move to Carmel-by-the-Sea and would serve the community
as one of its first planning commissioners. 

Sincerely,

Ian Martin
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Dear Chairman LePage and Members of the Carmel-by-the-Sea Planning Commission,

The proposed JB Pastor Building (DR 23-140) is a single structure under the law as all of its parts are 
connected together. 

The municipal code defines structure as follows: 
A stable assembly of parts. The term "structure" includes, but is not limited to, any building, deck, 
garage, carport, arbor, fence, wall, stairway, road, pipe, flume, conduit, siphon, aqueduct, telephone line, 

and electrical power transmission and distribution line.

The total floor area of the current plans (June 10, 2024 submittal) is 12,807 square feet. That's 2,807 
square feet too big according to municipal code: 17.14.140, C. No single structure shall contain more 

than 10,000 square feet of floor area. 

Therefore, the proposed JB Pastor Building must be reduced in size to be compliant with the law.*

Thank you for your attention,

Ian Martin

*Keeping buildings small is the clear intention of the General Plan. See “Scale” on page 1-7 of the Land
Use and Community Character Element for elaboration.  
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